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BioCiiy Group Limited

Repoart of the Birectors
for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

The Direclors present iheir Annual Report on the affairs of the Compans . jogether wiih ihe audned consobdaled Nnancial
statements for the vear ended 31 December 2019, A business review. detfails of future developments. principal risks and
uncertaiitiies and financial rish management objectives and policies can be found in the Group Strategic Repaort on pages 6 (o
10 and these are incorporated into this report by cross-reference.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the Group is the mcubation of earlv stage lile science. healthcare and medical technology compantes

and the provision of seed level equily investunent into such compantes. The Compam also invests in subsidiars undertakings
as part of 118 principal activin

GOING CONCERN

In the vear. the Group made a loss attmbutable to members of the Company of £371.000 (201%: £1.710.000) but continues 10
he cash positive as at 31 December 2019, The Group has net current assels of £2.591 000 (2618 £2.668.000) and equitv
attributable 1o the owners of the Compam of £4.421.000 (2018 £4.952.000). Included within cash is £1.784.000 (2018
£2.632.000% 0 relation to an exceptonad receipt of £5. UHL0U0 recerved from AstraZeneca (UK) Limited, a non-controlling
shareholder of subsidian Alderley Park Ventures Lmnuted. at the end of 2014, The profii before investment incoine. other gaing
and losses. finance gams/(costs). tax. deprecivtion. amortisavon and adpusted for exceptional ttems. being adjusted EBITDA.

amounted (0 £1.270.000 (2018 £879.000), The Board antictpates adjusted EBITDA for 2020 will be sumilar 10 the adjusied
EBITDA for 2019,

The Board has reviewed the Group's lorecasts for a minimum penod of inelve months {rom the date of the signing of these
Nnnancial statements. taking due consideration of the associated risks and uncertainties. and is confident that the Group isin o
satisfactory position. Events i refation 1o the COVID-[Y outbreak contmue lo evolve rapidly and the Group s momitoring the
sttuation closely as 1t develops. The Group has assessed the potenuial impact of the COVID-19 ouibreak under the current
circumstances and has begun implemenung certain cash saving measures 10 praintain an appropriate working capital cash
batlance without impairing the Group's ability to service its customers. The Group’s customers predoninanily operate in the
hie science. hiealthcare and medical technotogy seciors, which e considered more resthent  tines of 1ecession due o the
nature of their funding and a reduced + olume of direct to consumer transactions. Additionalls iy of the Groups customers
provide senvices to the pharmaceutical sector which simidarhy tends o be less impacted in times of recession as Governmernts.
healtheare providers and other kev stakeholders continue to purchase these products Having considered the factors abenve, the
Diarectors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to contfinue 1n operattonal existence for the
foreseeable future and accordingh continue 1o adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statermnents.

DIVIDENDS
The Diveciors do nol tecominend the pay meni of a dividend (2018, £Nib).

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

The Company has made qualifving third-party mdemnity provisions for the benetit of its Directors which were made during
the v ear and remain mn lorce at the date ol this report,

FUTURE DEVEL.OPMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Further detail on future developments and tinancial risk manageitient are provided o the Group Strategic Report oo pages G io
L
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BioCity Group Limited

Report of the Directors - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

DIRECTORS

The Directors shown below have held ofTice during the whole of the period frem | Januan 2019 1o the date of this report.
unless otherwise stated:

Dr J Brown

D Abrams

Dr G Crocker (Chain)

P Oliner

Professor K ShakeshelT

§ Henderson

Professor M J Biggs

T Reid (appointed 1 Januan 2010y

R Todd {appointed | September 2019)

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The Board holds formal meetings on a bi-monthly basis. with further meetings being called when circumstances or urgent
business dictate Addivonal meetings may be held via conference call.

The Board met 6 times during the v ear. Details of Directors™ attendance at these meetings and meetings of the Board's sub-
Committees are set out below. In the event that a director is unas ailable 1o atend a Board meeung. or to attend by telephone
link. he or she will communicate their views on items to be raised at the meeting through the Chairman.

The Board Audit Remuneralton
Comnittee Commiltee

Meelings
attended/(held) whiist

the Director was Mectings Mectings
Director a Board Member attended/{held) attended/theld)
Dr } Brown 6 {6) N/A N/A
D Abiams O {6y 2(2) ™N/A
Dr G Crocker 6 {6) N/A /A
P Oliver G (6) N/A N/A
Prolessor K M Shakesheff N1} N/A 1(1}
S Henderson 6 (6) X 1 {1
Professor M J Bigus 3 (6) N/A 1{D)
T Reid 6 (6) N/A N/A
R Todd 3(3) 1(1) N/A
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BioCity Gyoup Limijted

Report of the Directors - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

AUDITOR
Each of the persons wheo is a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

+ so far as the Directors are aware. there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaw are: and

+ the Directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have iaken as a Direcior in order to make themsels es aware of am
refey ant audit information and to establish that the Company s auditor is aware ol that information.

This conflirmation 13 given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act 2006

Mazars L.LP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditor and appropriate arrangements have been put in
nlace for them io be deamed reappointed as anditor in the absence of an Annual General Meeting,

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on its behalf by:

— oz S

T Reid - Director

Date: 27 Aprid 2020

Pennvioot Street
Nottingham
NG1 IGF
United Kingdom
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BioCity Group Limited

Directors' Responsibilities Statement

for the Year Ended 31 December 20§9

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial siatements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare such financial statements for each financial vear. Under that law the Directors
have elecied (o prepare the {inancial statements in accordance with Internanonal Financial Reporting Standards (iFRSs) as
adopted by the Furopean Union. Under company law the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied
that they give & tue and fair view of tie state o affawrs of the Company and of the prolit or foss of the Company for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, International Accounting Standard | requires that Direclors:

properhy select and apply accounting policies:

present information. mcluding accounting policies. in a manner that provides relevant reliable. comparable and
undersiandable information:

provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient o enable users la
understand the impact of panticutar fransactions. other es ems and conditions on the entits “s financial positien and financial
performance: and

make an assessment of the Company’s ability (o continue as a going concem.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient lo show and explain the Compamy s
transaciions and disclose wil reasonable accuraey atany time ihe financial posidon of the Company and enable theniiv enswre
that the financiai staiements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible {or safeguarding the assets of
the Company and hence for taking reasonable sieps for the preyention and detection of fraud and other irregulantics,
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BioClity Group Limited

Group Strategic Report
for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

In preparing this Strategic Report. the Direciors have complied with sd4ldc of the Companies Act 2006

ABOUT BIOCITY

The BioCity Group (BioCinv Group Limited and alf its subsidiary compaues) is the lareest lite science incubator business tn
the UK. The Group currently operates three sites. which are all based in the United Kingdom: two in Notingham (BioCity
Nottingham and MediCitv Nottingham) and one in Scotland (BioCity Scotland). Collectively. the three sites offer over 300,000
square fest of [aboratory. office and meeting room space. BioCitv also runs accelerator programmes al se eral sites across the
UK. which offer dedicated business coaching and mentoring for life science. healthcare and medical technology businesses

BioCits develops new businesses and provides them with the specialist facilities. support services and business advice ey
need, in an eny ironment that maximises their likelihood of success.

BioCity has made a number of seed and earlv-stage investments in selected oppertunities from s own cash reserves and
through the Alderlev Park Venture Fund. which is managed by the Group and which nvests using funds contributed by
AstraZeneca (UK} Lumited. The Group receives a 2% management Lee and a 204 carned interest in investments made through
the Alderley Park Venture Fimd on a deal-bs -deal basis.

STRATEGY
BioCits s vision is to be the UK feader in the dey clopment. funding and mcubuaiton of life scrence. healtheare and medical
fechnology businesses To achieve this vision. BioCity's strategy is {ocused on the following two key elements:

1y Growing the profitability of our core business by increasing and maintaining occupancy across all sites and opening new
sites in Key strategic locations within the UK:and

2) Growing BioCitv's abilitv 10 help build successful life science compantes by expanding our company development and
mnvestment activity,

RUSINESS MODEL
The Group beliey es its unique business model allows it to ulumately achieve its strategy . The business model consists of three
distinct elements: developmg. growing and myvesting in life science. healthcare and medical technologs businesses.

Developing ~ (isinyg our expertise 1o support the creation aid deveiopmaent of earlv-sidge businesses

The Group depiovs skilled 1eams w deveiop new busmesses by working with enrepreneurs in a variew of ways including
structured programmes which are delivered across all the UK. Through an established network of contacts 1n academic. NHS
and corporale bodies. the Group is able to increase the speed ai which nen companies can Hourish. This aciis iy helps (o bnld
a pipsling of tenant companies as well as providing a deep insight into their businesses and management teams. which is
invatuable for investmoent purposes.

Growing - Providing faciines and services (o support Company growif

The Group provides laboratory, office and meeting room facilities for life science. healthcare and medical technolog
companies. The Group aiso undenahes certain specialist iaboratory services and provides access to laboratory equipment.
enhancing the capital efficiency of the companies located at a Group site. Revenue {rom the provision of facilities and services
accounds for the majonity of the Group's tolad revepue. The conceniration of ife science. healtheare and medical technologs
companies ai all Group sites is intended 1o facilitale accelerated growth of these companies through networking. collaboration
and support. with the aim of these companics taking on wore facilitics and geaserating inore revenue for the Group. The
provision of facilities and services gives the Group a solid and sustaimable source of revenue. as laboratortes. offices and
Inborator services are a necessity for those companies based ot our sites,

Investing - Sclecnve mvestment in compuanies 1o support their long-term growth and 1o mncredse value for BroCuy

The Group invests in life science. healthcare and medical rechnology companies. providing a yaluable source of funding to
these businesses. The Group has siiicl inyestment critena thai 1t adheres 10 and the Group only invests in compames wiih the
intention of making a return on its investment at a future date. The majoriny of the Group's investments will be in relation to
ihose companies located ai a Group site. where the Group is able w facilitaie their growth and 1s able to closely monitor their
progress.
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BioCity Group Limited

Group Strategic Report - continued
forthe Year Ended 31 December 2019

BUSINESS REVIEW
The Directors rigoroushy monitor the performance of the business using. amoengst other indicators. the key performance
indicators as sct out m the table below:

Key performance indicators 2019 2018 2017 2016
Income (1) £10 13tm £9277Tm £9.334m £7.710m
Adjusted EBITDA (2} £1.279m L0379m £01873m (£0.i20my
Free cash fiow (3) £2.192m £6.223m £0.363m £.147m

{1y Income 15 defined as the total of revenue and grant income.

12) Adjusted EBITDA is defined as earnings before tny estment income. other gains and losses. finance gains/(costs). tax.
depreciation. amortisation and adjusted for exceptional tlems

(3} Free cash flow s defined as net cash flow from operations.

Income is defined as the total of revenue and grant income. Overall. income increased by £854k (9%) in 2019, Income from
Licence fees accounts for 727% of all incoime (2018: 67%). providing a reliable and sustainable source of income to the Group.
The Group accesses yrant funding to support its Company desvelopment activities wherever possible and strategicatly
appropriate. Grant income of £461.000 (2018 £031.000} constitutes 5% (Z018: 1¥s) of total income.

Adpusted EBITDA is a measure of the Group's underly g operating performance. As shown on the face of the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income. adjusted EBITDA is calculated by adjusting the Group’s operational result for non-cash
and exceptional items and is defined as eamnings before investment income. other yains and losses. finance gans/A(costs). tax.
depreciation. amortisation and adjusted for exceptional items. Adjusted EBITDA of £1.279.000 has increased from the prior
vear (2018: £879.000).

Free cash flow is a measure of the cash investment required to support the Group’s operations and it is defined as the net cash
low from eperations. Free cash flow of £2.192.000 10 2019 (2018, £223.000) was affected by alarge positive working capital
movement of £213.000 (2018:; negative £633.000),

Cash and cash equivalenis a1 31 December 2019 are £4.499.000 (31 December 2(H8: £3.325.00)0). resulung in lotal cash
inflows of £1.174.000 (201%: outflow of £1.346.600). This cash increase 1s primarily due 10 the Group issuing £2m of loan notes
during the vear, Within cash and cash equivalents of £4.499.000 a1 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: £3.325.000).
a balance of £1.783000 (31 December 2018: £2.632.000) refates (o the cash received from AstraZeneca which is solelv
(or the purposes of investing in third-party companies.

The carrving value of the Group's investments a1 31 December 2014 was £5 496000 (31 December 2018; £3.660.000). The
vatue of the Group's investments increased during 2019 by £1.836.000 (2018; £2.376.000). This increase was due to
imvestments in third-parts companies during the vear of £1.426.060. disposals of £278.000 and rev aluations of £688.000,

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Revenue and costs {or 2020 are expecied to increase slighth compared to 20719, The Group expects existing tenant companies
1o lake on more space and the Group expects 1o aftract new tenant companies {0 its sites during 2020, The Group also expects
costs to increase with inflation. Oserall. the Group anticipates adjusted EBITDA for 2020 will be similar (o the adjusted
EBITDA for 2610,
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BioCity Group Limited

Group Strategic Report - continued
Tor the Year Ended 31 December 2019

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's abilitv to meet its goals and objectives may be affected by a number of rishs and uncertainties relating 10 the
strategy . business modef and operating enviroament. The Direciors consuder the {ollowing wisks to be the principal risks
attributable to the Group. These risks are not a complete list of all the risks facing the Group and the Group’s performance
mav be affected by changes in market and/or economic conditions and changes in legnl. reculatory or tax legislation,
Additional nisks and uncertainties not presenth known to the Group or rishs currently deemed immaterial mayv also impact the
Group’s performance.

Key customer dependency risk

The Group have a number of important customers. and the loss of any of these customers could hay e a matenal impact on the
Group's future profliability and growth. The Group seeks io mitigate this risk by close momtoring of occupancy {orecasts.
business development aclivities 10 develop and maintain a pipeline of new occupants and through maintenance of resenve
{unds. I is anticipated that as the Group grovws and increases the number of customers it seryes. the Group's exposure 1o this
nisk will lessen overtime.

Liquidity risk

In order to maintain liquidits to ensure that sufficient finds are a ailable for angoing operations and Autore developments the
Group focusses on central cost control and closely montiors the cash availabie 1o the Group. which is im ested 1n o imixture of
current accounts and highly hquid cash depostis.

Competition risk

The industny within which the Group operales has relatively high barriers 1o entrs . but it is st possible a competitor could
enter the market and increase supply localiv. possibly ahead of demand. This is a particular risk in tocations where government
nten ention is prevalent. This could have a material impact on the Group’s future revenues and costs. To mitigate this nsk the
Directors are closely involved with organisations and commiutees that mayv impact future developiments of science-related
accommodation at locations where the Group’s operations are based.

Funding risk

A reduction n the levels of funding available {or early -stage companies cowld significantls reduce the prowth of the new
tenant pipeiine available 1o the Group and could impact on exisiing tenants” ability to grow or continue in operaton. To
mitigate this risk the Directors are closely involved with organisations and commitiees that may impact future developments
of science-related accommodation at locations where the Group's operouons are based and which are focused on new sources
ol investment availabie to companies.

Investment risk

The Group invests in earlv-stage companies and failuie of these investinents could impact the Group’s future profitability and
growth, The Directors manage this risk b madntaining a diversified portfolio of investments and by maintaining clear
investment criteria by which the Group determines whether 1t should invest 1 a company. Most of these investments are my
companies that have either been through one of the Group's developiment programmes. or are companies based at a BioCit
site. This allows the Group to undertake significant “reai-time’” due diligence on a regular basis before anmy investment 1s made
In g company.

Business interruption risk

A significant and prolonged disruption 1o amv of the Group’s facilittes could result in a substantinl foss of income mcreasad
costs. loss of tenants or potennal litigation rom tenants The Directors manage this nsk by ensuring a comprehensive
prey entafive maintenance programme is in place for oYl sites and the Group has adeguate msurance cover. subject 1o certam
exclusions and deductibles. against the usual insurable perils. such as property damage and other business interrupting e ents,

Coronavirus

The Directors have considered the potential impact on the Group of the Coronavirus over the period of the going concem
slatement. Based on its assessment. the Group considers that the impact on the Group's current operations could be significant
and the Group is implementing mitigating measures (o ensure the business continues to operaie as a going concern
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BioCity Group Limited

Group Strategic Report - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Brexit

The Group's business is entirels focused on the UK domestic market and as such. the Group does not have any significant
trade of goods and services with companies ouiside of the UK. The Directors consider the direct tmpact of Brexit to be alow
rish to the Group. although the Group’s customers may experience a greater impact on their businesses from Brexit.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT. OBJECTIVES AND POGLICIES
The Group is exposed 1o interest rate changes as some of 11s cash is held at foaung rates.

The Group manages its credit isk by having many cusiomers: inyvoicing and receiving pay ments in ady ance on fised-recurring
revenue: mainfaining strong credit control and continualls monttoring outstanding debtors.

Liguidity risk is managed by keeping sufficient cash i bank accounts to maintain dav-to-dav operations
The Group does not use deriv ative financial instruments.

The Company's activities expose it to g nuinber of financial rishs including cash flow rish. credit rish and liquidity

risk. The use of financial derivatives is goyverned by the Compamy s policies approved by the board of directors. which provide
wrntten pringiptes on the use of financtal derty atiy cs to manage these risks. The Company does not use derivative financial
mstruments for speculative purposes.

(Cash flow risk
Tie Company s acinvities expose il primaib o the hnanceal ashs of changes m rates.
Interest bearing assels and labilities are primarily held at fixed rae to ensure certainty of cash flows.

Credit risk

The Compam’s principal {inancial assets are bank balances and cash. trade and other receivables. and mvestments.

The Compam “s credit rish is primarily attributable to 1ts trade receivables. The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net
of altfowances for doubtfud receivables. An allowance {or impairment is made where there is an identified loss event which.

based on previous experience. is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows.

The credit rish on hquud fuads and derivahive financial mstruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned b internattonal credit-rating agencies.

The Company has no sigmficant concentration of credit risk. with exposure spread over a larue number of counterparties and
cusiomers.

Liguidity risk
In order to maintain lguidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future developments. the
Company uses a mixture of long-term and short-term debt finance,

Further detaiis regarding hquidits nsk can be found in the notes to these financial statements,
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BioCity Group Limited

Group Strategic Report - continueid
for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

EMPLOYEES

The Group is an equal opportunities enployer and promotes diversity through the selection. training. development and
promotion of emplovees. The Group does not differentiate on grounds of gender. ethnicitv. sexual orientation. religion or
physical ability, For the vear ended 31 December 2019, the Group emploved an ay erage of 39 (2018: ¢1) employ ees including
its Executive Directors. A breakdown of Direciors and emplov ees by gender is shown in the fabie below. R Todd was appointed
on | September 2019 and at the balance sheet date. the Group had Y directors. of which | was female and R were male.

Mate Female Total
Board of Directors 8 - 8
Emplovees 23 36 39

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on its hehalf hy:

T Reid - Director

Date: 27 Apnil 2020

Pennyv oot Sirect
Nottingham
NGHIGE

United Kingdom
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
BioCitv Group Limited

Report on the audit of the fibancial statemenis
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BioCrty Group Limiled {the “Parent Company ') and 11s subsidianes (the "Group")
for the vear ended 31 Pecember 2019 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. the Consolidated
and Company Balance Sheet. ithe Consolidated and Company Statement of Changes in Equity . The Consolidated and Company
Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statemenis. including a summarny of significant accounting policies The
financial reporting framew orh that has been applied in thoir preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Euwropean Unton,

In our opinion:

« the financial statements give a true and Lair view ol the state of the group’s and of the parent company “s affairs as at 31
December 2019 and of the group’s Toss for the y ear then ended:

« the group financial statements have been properlv prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union:

+ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2(x}: and

s the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requtrements of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducled our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK) and applicable law. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are turther described in the Auditor’s responsibilities (or the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent ot the company i accordance with the ethical requirements that are reles ant to our audst
of the financial statements in the UK including the FRC s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
m accordance with these reguirenients. We beliey e that the audit evidence we hay e obiained 1s sufficient and appropriate w provide
a basis for our opinion

The impact of uncertainties due te both the COVID-19 coronavirus and the United Kingdom exiting the Eurcpean Union
ont our audit

The Directars’ view on the impacts of the COVID-19 coronavirus and Brexit are disclosed on pages 8 and 9 respectively

The fudl impact following the recent emergence of the global coronavirus is still unhnown. 1t is therefore not currently possible to
evaluate all (he potential implications to the group and company ’s trade. customers. suppliers and the wider economa .

The United Kingdom withdrew {rom ke European Union on 31 January 2020 and entered into an Implementation Period which
1s scheduled (o end on 31 December 2020, However. the terms of the future trade and other refationships with the European Union
are not vet clear. and 11 1s therefore not currently possible (0 evaluate all the potential impheations to the group and company s
trade. customers. suppliers and the wider economy .

We considered the impacts of COVID-19 coronavirus and Brexit on the group and company as part of our audit procedures.
applying a standard lirm wide approacts in response o the unceriamiy assoctated with the group’s and company s fuiure prospecls
and performance.

However. no gudit should be expected to predict the unknow able factors or all pessible implications for the compamy and this is
narticularly the case in relation to both COVID-1Y ¢coronavirus and Brexit.

Conclusions rejating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the follow ing matters in relation to whuch the ISAs (UK) require us {0 report to s ou where:

+ the directors” use of the going concem basis of accounting n the preparation of the {inancial statements is not approprate; or

» the directors have not disclosed in ihe financial statements am wdentified material uncertainties that may cast significani doubt
about the ¢roup’s or the parent company s abilitv to continue 1o adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a pentod af at
least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authonised for issue.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
BioCity Gyoup Liemited {continued)

Orther information

We have nothing to report i respeet of the following matters in relation 10 which the 1SAs (UK) require us fo reporl 1o vou
where:

the directors” use of the going concem basis ol accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate:
or

the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements amy identified material uncertainties that mav cast signifrcant
doubt about the group s or the parent company s abilitv (o continue to adopt the goirtg concern basts of accounting for a
period of at lenst twefve months from the date when the finoncial statemenis are authorised for issue.

Other information - continued

In connection with our audit of the (nancial statements. our responsibility 15 to read the other formation and. in doiny so.
consider whether the other information 15 materially inconsistent with fhe financial statemenis or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materiallh musstated. If we identiiy such material inconsistencies or apparent material
missintements. we are required to determine whether there is a material nussiatement in the financial statements or a matenal
nusstalement of the other information. 110 based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there 1s a matenal
misstatement of this other information. we are required 1o repor! that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion. based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
» the indonmation given in the Strategic Report and the Directors Report tor the Limancial y ear for which the financial statements
are prepared 1s conststent with the [inancial statements: and

*+ the Strategic Report and the Direclors’ Report haye been prepared in accordance with applicable tegal requirements.

Matters on which we are required o report by exception

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained 1n the course of
the audit. we have net identified matenal misstalements in the Strategic Report or the Diractors” Repott.

We hase nothing to report in rospect of the following matters in relation to which the Companics Act 2006 requires us 1o report
i ) b= P & ¥
to v ou ifL in our opinion:

adeguale accounting records hay e not been kept by the parent company . or refins adeguate for our audit have not been received
fromm branches not visied by us: or

the parent compam financial sialements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns: or

»  certain disclosures of directors” remuneration specified by law are net made: or

= we have not received all the information and explanations v e require for our andit.

Responsibilities of Directors
As explained more fullv in the directors” responsibilitics statement set oul on page 3. the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view . and for such nternal control as

the directors determine is necessans o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material nusstatemen,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financiai statements. the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company s abilits to
continue as a going concem. disclosing. as applicable. matters celated to going concem and using the going concem basis of
accouniing uniess the divecturs either intend 10 Higuidate the yroup or the parent compuy of to cease operations. or his ¢ no realisiic
ablernative but 1o do so.

[



Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of

BioCity Group Limited (countinued}

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to vhfain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from maierial
nusstatement. whether due to fraud or error. and to 1ssue an auditor’s report that includes ouwr opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantec that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK will always detect @ material
misstatemient when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or crror and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
slatements.

A further deseription ol our respensibitities for the audit ot the financial statements s Jocated on the Financial Reporting Counctl's
website at waw fic org uk/auditorsresponsibiities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of the audit report

This repori is made solelv to the company s members as a body in accordance with Chaptler 3 of Part 16 of the Compairics Act
2006, Qur audil work has been undertaken so that we mught state to the company "s members those matters we are requred to state
10 them in an auditer’s report and fer no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law. we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company 's members as a body for our audit work. for this repott. or for
the opintons we have formed.

Alistair Wesson {Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behati of Mazars LLP

Chartered Accountants apd
Statutory Auditor

Park View Housc
58 The Ropewalk
Nottingham

NG 5DW
United Kingdom

Date: 27 April 2020
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BioCity Group Limited

Consolidated Statement of Compirehensive Income
for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Note £'000 £'000
Ray enue 2 0670 8,340
Grant income 2 461 931
Adminisitative expenses (10.094) (2.770)
37 (493)
Adjusted EBITDA= 1.279 70
Depreciation 3 (1.242) (1.372)
OPERATING PROFIT / (LOSS) 37 (493)
Iny estiment income 4 30 40
Other gains and losses K 712 e
Fitnance costs [ (1.248) (1. 1o
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 3 (360Y (.41 0
Taxation b 18 1376}
LOSS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR, BEING
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR (451) {1.790)
Anrihbiiulile (o
Members of the Company (371 (L7t
Non-controlling interesis 20 {80y

En

All results are derived from continuing operations.

* Earnings belore investment income. other gaing and losses. finance gamns 7 (costs), rax, depreciation, amortisation and
adjusted for exceptional items.
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BioCity Greup Limited

Consolidated Ralance Sheet
As at 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Note £'000 £1000

ASSETS
Property. plant and equipment v 23 746 23214
Iny estments 1t} 3,404 3.660
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 29.242 26874
Trade and other receiy ables 11 1.564 2322
Cash and cash equivalents 12 4499 3.325
CURRENT ASSETS 0.063 5.047
TOTAL ASSETS 3n.303 32521
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables i3 (2.364) (2.223)
Deferred revenue 14 (169) (143)
Borrowings 1 {(939) {611y
CURRENT LIABILITIES (3.472) (2.979)
Borrowings 15 (25.131) (22.371)
Deferred tax liabihty 17 (27 (43}
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (25.158) (22.416)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (28.630) (25.395)
NET ASSETS G.675 7.126
EQUITY
Share capnal 1% 224 224
Share premium 18 2,758 2,758
Other reserves 18 1.256 1.256
Merger resenve 18 (2980} (2.UK6)
Profit and toss account 18 3169 3.740
Non-controlling interest 2254 2034
TOTAL EQUITY 6.675 7.126
Attributable to
Owners of the Compam 4421 4.992
Non-controtling mierest 2254 2134

(675 7426

The financial statements of BioCity Group Limited (registered number: D8694350). were approy ed and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 27 Apnl 2020 and were signed on its behal{ by:

T Reid - Birector
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BioClity Group Limited

Company BalanceSheet
As a1 31 December 2019

ASSETS Note 2019 2018
£°000 £°G00
Property. plant and equipment 9 17.738 18468
Investments 10 2735 2133
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 20513 20,603
Trade and other recervables 1! 2535 2.551
Cash and cash equin alenis i2 2.439 GOS
CURRENT ASSETS 1974 3210
TOTAL ASSETS s 23S
LIABILITIES
Trade and other pavables 13 (1.348) (1413
Deferred revenue t3 {39 {421
Borrowings i3 {460) (245)
CURRENT LIABILITIES N L 8
Borrowings i3 (21.173) (149321}
Deferred tax liabilin 17 27 43
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (21.2(1)) (19.366)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (23.247) (21.068)
NET ASSETS 2.240 2.731
EQUITY
Share capital % 224 224
Share pronium 1% 2738 3758
Profit and Joss account 18 {742) (231
TOTAL EQUITY o 2240 2751
Attributable to 2 240 Yy s
Owners of the Company 2.24 2.751

In accordance with Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. the Tncome Statement of the Parent Company 15 not
presented. The Parent Company 's retained toss afler excepional items and iax for the financial s ear amounted 1o
£311.000 (2018 Toss £218.00001),

The linancial statements of BioCity Group Limited (registered number: 08694330} were approved and authorised for 1ssue
by the Board of Directors on 27 April 2020 and were signed on i1s behalf'byv:

7ot

T Retd - Director
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BioCity Group Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Balance at 1 January 2018
Realisation of assets gified

Total comprehensive toss
Cancellation of share capital
Balance at 31 December 2618

Balance at 31 December 2019

Balance at 1 January 2018

L.oss tor the vear

Realisation of assets pified
Disposal of subsidiary iny estment
Total comprehensive (loss)income
Cancellation of share capital
Balance at 31 December 2018
Loss for the s ear

Tolal comprehensive (loss)/income

Balance at 31 December 2019

Share Share Other Merger
capital premium reserves reserve

£'000 £'000 £000 £'600
233 2758 L 769 {2.980)
(513) -

- - (5313) -

9} - - -
224 2,758 1.256 (2.986)
224 2758 1.256 (2,986}

Non-
FProfit and Equity controlling

loss account holders interest Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
5313 7.087 1.838 8,925
(L.710) (1.71th (80) (1.790)
313 - - -
(376) (376} 376 -
$1.573) (2.086) 296 (1.790)
- (9) - ()]
3.740 4.992 2134 7.126
(371 (871) 120 {451)
(371 (571) 120 (@51)
3164 4,421 2.254 76.6757
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BioCity Group Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Balance at 31 January 20i8
Cancellation of share capital

Total comprehensine Joss
Balance at 31 December 2018

Total comprehensis e foss

Balance at 31 December 2019

Shf‘"‘ Sh_""’“ Profit and less

capital premium account Total
£°000 £7000 £°000 £7000
233 2,758 087 3.678
9 - - ()
. . {(918) (518)

224 2.75K 230 2751
- = (311) (LD

224 2.75% (742) 2.240
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BioCity Group Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended 31 December 2619

Ope=rating profit / foss

Depreciation

Foreign exchange movements

Operating cash flows before movements in working
capital

Decrease / (increase) i trade and other recervables
Increase in trade and other pavables

Increase  (decrease) in deferred revenue

Cash generated from operations

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of propern . plant and equipment

Purchase ol irade invesiments

Proceeds of disposal of propern . plant and equipment
Interest received

Proceeds of disposal of trade invesiments

Proceeds ol disposal of non capitalised assets

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash Nows from financing activities

Loans advanced

Repay ment of loans

Interest pand

Net cash (outflow)} / inflow from financing activities
Increase / decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of vear

Page 19

Note

2

2019 2018
£'000 £000
37 {493)
1.242 1.372
- (h
1.274 %384
746 (092)
111 161
26 (104
2192 223
{309} (248)
{1.296) (970)
- O

I8 I

147 30
30 10
______ (i.410) (1.122)
2000 560
(51 (231)
(1.094) {716)
392 (+47)
1.174 (1.346)
3.325 4.671
4499 3.325




BioCity Group Limiyed

Company Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Note
Operaiing profit

Deprecialion

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
Decrease / (increase) in (rade and other receivables

Increase in trade and other pavables

{Decrease) / increase in deferved revenue

Cash used in operatious

Cash fiaws from investing activities
Purchase of property. plant and equipment

Purchase of trade investiments

Proceeds of disposal of non capitalised assets
Intere<t receiverd

Net cash outflow from investing activifies

Cash flows from financing activities
Loans advanced

Repayvment of loans

Interest paid

Net cash {gutilow) / inflow trom linaacing activities

Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash egaivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of vear

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 12

Pape 2¢

AR 2018
£7000 £'000
476 78
%31 837
1.307 D13
17 (1.300)

(£33 164
{3) %
) 1.387 {214
(91) (33)
1620) _
§ 7

3 i

(7043) (43) )
2.000 S04
(54 £62)
(85V) (374)
L 1.087 {130)
1.774 (395)
6GOS o ‘\ﬂyi_

2439 663




BioCity Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenis

for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General information and accounting convention
BioCity Group Limited (the Company ) is a Company limsted by shares incorporated 1n the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act 2006,

The Company is a privaie Company and is registered in England and Wales. The address of the Companv's
registered olTice is shown on page .

The nature of the Company’s operalions and its principal activities are set out in the Report of the Directors on
pages 2 (o 4.

These financial stalemenis are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the priman economic
environment w which the Company operates and figures han ¢ been presenied 1o the nearest thousand.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements and the financial statements of the Parent Company have been prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 20006 and 1FRSs and related interpretations as adopted by the European Union.

The separate financial stalements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 and have been
prepared in accordance with 1FRSs as adopted by the European Union. The Compam is taking ads antage of the
exemplion in section 408 of the Compantes Act 2000 naot to present s indiyidual Statement of Comprehensiy e [ncome
and the related notes that form a part of these approved financial statements The Parent Company lose for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is £511 000 {2018: £918.001})

The (inancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. revised for use of fair values where required
by applicable [FRS. Fair value is the pnce that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an
orderly (ransaction between markel participants af the measurement date. regardless ol whether that pnce 1s directly
obsertable or estimated ustng another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability. the
Group 1ahes mnto account the characteristics of the asset or liabiliny i a markei partictpant would take those
characleristics into account when pricing the asset or liabilify at the measurement date. Fair value measurements and/or
disclosures iy tiese consolidaied Gnancial statements are determined o such bagis. except for share-based pay ment
transactions that are within the scope of 1IFRS 2. and measurements that have some similarities 1o fair value bul are
itot {air value. such as net realisable value in LAS 2 or value in ase in IAS 36

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below

Basis of consolidation
The conzolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statentents of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company (its subsidiaries) made up 1o 31 December each s ear. Control is achieved when the Company:

+ has the power over the investee:
» is exposad. or has rights. to vanable return from tts involvement with the mvestee: and
+ has the ability to use its poner 1o affects is retoms

The Company teassesses wlhether or nol it controls an inyesiee if Tacts and circumstances indicate thal (here are changes
10 one or more ol the three elements of control listed above. When the Company has less than a majority of the yvoling
rights of an investee. it considers that it has power over the investee when the voung rights aresufficient to give it the
practical ability 1o direct the refevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
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BioCity Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued
foi the Year Ended 31 December 2019

i. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation - continuwed

The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Compam “s voting rights
i an investee are sulficient 1o give it power. including:

* ihe size of the Compan s bolding of 1oting ryghts relative to the size and dispersion of heldings of the other vote
holders:

 petential yoeting rights held by the Company. other vete holders or other parties.

- rights arising (rom other contractual arrangements: and

» am addittonal facts and cirewnstances that indicate that the Compam: has. or does not have. the current abiliy to
direct the relevant aclivities at the tine that decisions need to be made. including veoting pattems at previous
sharcholders™ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidian hepins when the Company obtains control over the subsidian and ceases when the
Compamy loses control of the subsidian . Specifically. the results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
vear are included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income from the date the Compamv gains control
unii! the date when the Company ceases o control the subsidiary,

Profit or Joss and ench component of other comprehensive incorne are attributed to the members of the Compam and
10 the non-controlling interesis. Total vcomprehensive income of the subsidianies is attributed to the members of the
Compamy and to the non-contrelling interests esen if this results in the non-controlling interests haying o deficn
balance.

Where necessan . adjustments are made o the financial statements of subsidiartes to bring the accounting policies
used tito line with the Group s accounting policies. All intragroup assets and habilitles. equity. mcome. expeanses and
cash flows relating to transactions betw een the members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately {rom the Group's eqwiy therein. Those nferests of
not-conirolling members that are present ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets upon liquidation may mitiallv be measured at fur vafue or at the non-controiling inderests” proportionate share
ol the fair value of the acquiree’s idenufiable net assets The choice of measurement 15 muade on an acquisibon-by -
acquisition basis. Other non-controlling mterests are mitialhv measured at far value. Subsequent to acquisition. the
cam ing amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interects at iniual recognition plog the non-
controlling interests” share of subsequent changes in equits. Total comprehensive income is attribwed to non-
controlling interests even if this results in the nen-controlling interests having a defient balance

Changes in the Group’s mnlerests in subsidiaries that do not result in a foss of control are accounted for as equity
ransactions. The carn ing amount of the Group’s interesis and the non-controllmg interests are adjusted 1o reflect the
changes in their relative interests 1n the subsidiaries Any difference between the amount bv which the non-controling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recounised directly in equity and
attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary_ the gain or loss on disposal recognised 1n profit or loss 1s calculated as
the difference beiw een £1) the avgreyate of the [air value of the consideration received and the fair s alue of any retained
nterest and (i) the previous cam ing amount of the assets tincluding goodwill). less liabilines of the subsidian and
any non-conirolling interests. All amounts previoushy recognised i other comprehensive mcome m relayion 1o that
subsiciary are accounted lor as 1 the Group had drrecth disposed of the related assets or habilities of the subsidiary
{r.e. reclassified to profit or ioss or transferred (0 another category of equity as specilted/pernutied by applicable
[FRSs). The fair s alue of ans s estment retained in the former subsidian at the date when control is last is regarded
as the fair value on imtal recognition for subsequeint accuuntiiig.
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BioCit

aroup Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December20t9

—

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLECIES - continued

Merger reserve and merger accounting principles

Busmess combinations are dealt with under IFRS 3. [FRS 3 however does not apply 1o Group reconsiructions. BioCity
Group Limited was incorporated and inserted into the group as an intermedian holding company. on 1 August 2015,
The trade. assets and Labilities of the BioCity Group were transferred to BioCitv Group Limited. however. as the
majority of shareholders before and after the transaction remained the same the transaction is therefore a Group
reconstruction.

There 1s currently no specific gutdance on accounting for Group reconstructions such as this transaction underTFRSs.
In the absence of specific suidance. entities should select an appropriate accounting policy and [FRS permits the
cansideration of pronouncements of other standard-setting bodies. This Group reconstruction as scoped out of IFRS 3
has therefore been accounted for using merger accounting principles in accordance with UK GAAP. Merger accounting
15 a technigue used in preparing consolidated accounts resulting in the following practical effects:

»  Noamount is recogrised as consideratron for goodwill or negative goodwill:

* The consolidated Statement of Comprehensite Income includes the profits of each Company in the Group for the
entire period. repardless of the date ol the reconstruction. and the comparative amounis in the consolidated financial
stalements are restated (o the aggregate of the amounts recorded by the Group. as if it has alwas s been in existence:

» The profit and loss account resen e includes the cumulative results of the Group. regardiess of the date of the
reconstruction. and the comparative amounts in the Balance Sheet are restated to the aggregate of the profit and
loss account reserves recorded by the Group: and

* A merger reserve is created being the premium on equits consideration used in the acquisition of the trade. assels
and liabilities of BioCity Nottingham Limited. by BioCity Group Limited in 207 5 plus cumulative profits or [osses
aitributable o equity holders of the Group as at the combination date.

The effect of using merger accouniing principles on share capttal and share premium is that the capital and share
premium that existed as at the point BioCity Group Limited acquired the trade. asscts and habilitics of BioCity
Nottingham Limited 1s accounled for as if it had been 1in existence as at the opening balance sheet dale (} Januvary
2013%),

Going concern

In the vear. the Group made a loss attnibutable to members of the Company of £371.000 (2018 £1.710.000} but
conlinues o be cash positive as at 31 December 2019, The Group has net current assets of £2.391.000 (Z018:
£2.668.000) and equith atintbutable 10 the owners of the Company ol £4.421.0600 (201 8: £4,992.000}) Included within
cash 1s £1.784.000 (2018 £2.632.000) in relation to an exceptional receipt of £3.000.000 received [Tom AstraZeneca
(UK) Limited. 4 non-controlling shareholder of subsidhany Alderiey Park Ventures Limited. w ithe end of 2014, The
profit before invesiment income. other gains and losses. finance gams/(costs), tax. depreciation. amortisation and
adjusted for exceptional ilems. being adjusted EBITDA. amounted to £1.272.800 (2018 £879.000). The Board
anticipates adjusted EBITDA for 2020 will be similar to the adjusted EBITDA for 2019,

The Board has reviewed the Group's forecasts for a minimumn period of twels e months trom the date of the signing of
these financial statements. taking due consideration of the associated risks and uncertainies. and is confident that the
Group s in a satistactory position. Events in relation to the COVID-19 outbreak comntinue to evolve rapidlv and the
Group is monitoring the situation closely as it develops. The Group has assessed the potentiat impact of the COVID-
1Y outbreak under the curremt circumstances and has begun mmplementing certain cash saving measures to mantain an
appropriate working capital cash balance without impairing the Group’s ability to service its customers. The Group's
customers predominantis operate in the life science. healtheare and oiedical lechnology sectors. which are considered
more resilient in tiunes of recession due to the nature of their funding and a reduced volume of direct to conswmer
transactions. Additionally many of the Groups customers provide services to the pharmaceutical sector which similarh

tends o be less impacted in times of recession as Governments. healthcare providers and other key stakeholders
continue to purchase these products. Having considered the factors above. the Directors have 2 reasonable expectation
that the Group has adequate resources to conlinue in aperational existence for the loreseeable future and accordingh

continue to adopi the going concern hasis in preparing the financial siaterments.

Property, plant and equipment
Assets are stated af cost. net of depreciation and any provision for impairment, Assets gified o the Company m 2012
were recorded in the Balance Sheet at the market 1alue at the date the assets were gifted. this being the deemed cost.
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BioCity Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statenienis - coniinued

for the Year Ended 31 December2019

1.

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
The gain was recognised through the Statement of Comprehensive income.

Property . plant and equipment 1s derecognised 1 the Consolidaled and Company Balance Sheet on disposal.

Grants recen od for the purchase of property. plant and cquipment arc deducted from the gross cost of the assets
acquired.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated so as to wiite of the cost of an asset. less us estimated residual value. over the useful
economice life of that asset as foHows.

Land Not depreciated

Freehold buildings 5% per annum straight line
Leasehold improvements 3% to 10% per annum straight line
Right-of-use assets wer the term of the lease

Plant and machinen 10% to 33% per annum straight line
Fixtures and {ittings %% per annum s{raight lime
Equipment 10% 10 33% per annum straight line
Leases

The Group as {essee

In accordance with IFRS 16, the Groap recognises right-of-use assets under lease agreements in which it is the lessee.
‘The enderh ing assets relate to property of equipment. The right-oftuse assets comprise the mitial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability and payments made at or before the commencement day as well as any niiial direct costs
Furthermore. leace tncentives are recogniced separateh and anertised during the lease term. The corresponding lease
liabititv is included in the Balance Sheet as a lease hiability. Existing lease liabilities have been raclussified from
borrowings 1o finance lease liabilities into the new separate line item lease liabilith where refex ant.

The right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the fcase-term and if necessan itupaired i nccordance with applicable
standards. The lease hability s subsequenthy measured by mcreasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease hiailite (application of the effectiy e interest method) and by reducing the carrying wmount to reflect the lease
pavments made. No modification or reassessments of the lease lability have been made during the reporung penod.

Pension costs

The Group operates i defined coptnibution pension scheme for employ ees. The assets of the scheme are held separaiels
from those of the Group. The annual comributions pavable are charged 1o the Consolidmed Siatement of
Compreliensive Income.

Borrowing costs

Botraw ing costs retating to loans are recognised in the Coasolidated Statement of Comprehensis e lacome i the period
in which thev are incurred.

Foreign currency
The Group’s functional and reporting currency is sterling.

Page 24



BioCity Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December2019

1. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently pas able and deferred tax,

Current fux

The tax currentls pavable 1s based on taxable profit for the vear. Taxable profit differs from net profi as reporied in
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehiensiyv e Income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
ot deductible in other vears and 1t further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liabilits for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantis ely enacted by the Balance Sheet Date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be pay able or recoserable on differences between the carrving amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial sfatements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and
Is accounted [or using the Balance Sheet liabilitn method Deferred tax liabilities are generalls recogrused for alt
taxable temporany differences and deferred rax assets are recognised {o the exlent that 1t1s probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporan difTerences can be utilised. Such assets and labilities are not
recognised if the temporan difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the iniual recognition
{other than in a business combination} of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects netther the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

The carnv ing amount of deferred tax asseis is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that 1113
no longer probable that sulficient taxable profits will be available o allow all or part of the assel to be recovered.
Deferrad 1ax is calculated at the 1ax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled. or the
assel is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets re(lects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
n which the Group expects. at the end of the reporting period, o recover or settle the carmving amount of i1s assets and
liabilities.

Deterred iax assels and habilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable nght (o set ofT current tax assets agaimnst
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the samce taxation authoritv and the Company
inlends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Currenl tax and deferred tax for the vear

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when thev relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or direcily in equitv_ in which case. the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or ditectly th equity respectivels

Grants

Grants are nol recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received. Grants swhose priman cendition is that the Group should purchase.
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are deducted {rom the gross cost amount of the asset acquired

Grants that are recenable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediale (inancial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in the Consoltdated Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they become recein able,



BioCity Group Limised

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued
for_ the Year Ended 31 December2019

i. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and limancial fiabilives are recognised in the Group's Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a parn
to the contractual provisions of the mstrument,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured indialls at fair value. Transaction costs that are directls
attributable to the acquusition or issue of [inancial assets and financial liabifites {other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or toss) are added 1o or deducted lrom the fair value of the financial
assels or linancial liabilities. as appropnate. on inial recopmtion Transaction cosis directhy antributable 1o the
acquisition of financial assets or [inancial liabiiities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised unmediatels in
protit or loss.

Financial assets

All purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecepnised on a Wrade date basis where the purchase or
sale of a financial asset 15 under a confract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the tmeframe
established by the market concerned. and are mitially measured at tar value. plus transacion costs. except lor those
financial assets classttied as at fair value through profit or loss. which are wnitially measured at fair value.

Financial assets held by the Group are classilied as etther fair value through profit or loss. or as loans and trade
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and 1s determined at the time
of the matial recognition.

The Group derecognises a {inancial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash Qows from the asset expire. or
whep it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to ancther
parts. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially: all the risks and rewards of ovwnership and continues
to control the transferved asset, the Group recoznises 1is retmned nterest in the asset and an associated hability for
amounts it mayv have to pay .

On derecoanition of a financial asset. the difference between the asset’s carning amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Investment valuation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell as asset in an orderly transaction between market participants af
a specific pownt in time

The fair value of each mvestiment held by the Group 18 assessed at the Group's financial vear end date {currently 31
December) and at varous points during each financial vear when deemed appropriate,

Quoted ivestrents
TFhe fair v alues of guoted imy esumems are based on bid process at the reporting date

Unguoted investmenfts

The fair value of unquoted invesiments is established using the International Private Fquits and Venture Capital
Valuation Guidehnes. The v aluation methodology most commonty used v the Group is 'price of recen! iy estment’.
which can be either the 'price of recen( funding round’ or 'cost’ in the case of a new direct inyestment,

Given the nature of the Group's investments in earh -stage comparies. where there are often no current and no visible
shert-term Future eamings or posiiyve cash flows. it can be ditlicult 1o gauge the probability and financial impact of
the success or falure of commercial development or research activities and to make reliable cash flow {orecasts.
Consequently . the most appropriate approach to deterniine fair value is a methoedology that is based on observable
market data. that being the price of a recent iny estment,
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICILES - continued

Unguoted investments - continued

The Group considers that fair s alue estimates that are based entirels on observable market data will be of greater
reliabilin than those based on assumptions and accordingly. where there has been any recent invesiment by third
parties, the price of that inv estment will generally provide a basis for the valuation. Where the investment being v alued
was 11self made recently . its cost will generaily provide a good indication of fair value untess there is objective evidence
that the investment has since has heen impaired. such as observable data suggesting a detericration of the fmancial,
technical or commercial performance of the underlyving business.

If there is no readily ascentamable value from following the 'price of recent myesiment’ methodology . the Group
considers alternati e methodologies. which are referred to in the IPEVCV gutdelines. beng principallv financial
measures (‘enterprise values'). such as trading and profitabilits expecitations and prices of comparable recent
transactions where such information is available. reliable and relevant. requiring the Directors 1o make assumptions
over the timing and nature of fulure revenues when calculating fair value. Where a fair value cannot be estimated
reliabls . the investment is reported at the carving value at the previons reporting dale unless there is evidence that
the investment has since become impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset mayv be impaired. If any such
indication exists. or swhen annual impairment testing {0t an asset (s required. the Group makes an estimate of die asset's
recoverable amount. An assel's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair valua less
cosls to sell and its value i use and 1s determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those [rom other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrving amount of an asset
exceeds its recoserable amount. the asset is considered impaired and is written down Lo its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use. the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present salue using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments ol the ime value of monev and the risks specthic to the asset

Imparment losses on continuing operations are recognised in the Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensi ¢ Income
in those categories consistent with the function of the rmpaired asset

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is amv indication that previously recognised
umpairment losses mav no tonger exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists. the recoyerable amount 1s
estimated. A previeusly recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
1o determine the assel’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case. the
carrving wnount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carving
amount that would hay e been determined. net of depreciation. had no impairment loss been recognised [or the asset in
prior vears Such reversal is recogmsed in the Consolidated Stalement of Comprehensive Income unless the asset is
carried a1 the re-valued amount. in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such a reversal
the depreciation charge is adyusted in future peniods 1o allocate the asset's revised carrving amount, less any residual
value, on a svslematic basis over Hs remaining useful Life.
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SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES - confinued
Financial liabilitics and equity

Debt and equitv instruments are classified as enther flinancial labilities or as equity in accordance with the subsiance
of the contraciual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liabiitty and an equity msirument.

Finauncial liabilities

Al financial labilities are initially measured at fair valpe and. if material. are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the elfective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial liabiliy and of allocatng
intarest expense oner the relevant pertod. The offective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futare
cash pay ments {including all fees and points paid or received thal form an integral part of the effective interesi rate.
transaction costs and cther premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financal liability. or (where
appropriate) a shorter period. to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

The Group derecognises financial habihittes when. and only when. the Compans s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or thev expire. The difference between the catrving amount of the financial lability derecognised and the
consideration paid and pavable is recognised in profii or loss.

Equity instriments

An equity insitument is any contract that evidences a residual ierest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its habilities Equirv msiruments issued by the Group are recognised at he proceeds received. net of direci issue cosis.

Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments 12 recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss s
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase. sale. 1ssue of cancellation of the Group’s ownequily

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and other highty iiquid mvestments
that are readily com ertible to a known amount of cash and are subject 1o an insignilicant rish of changes in value.
Revenue

Revenue is measured in accordance with the refevant accounting standards For all contracts withih the scope of IFRS
13, the Companyv determines whether enforceable rights and obhgations have been created with the customer and
recognuses rex enue based on the total transactiot: price as estimated al the contract inception. baing the amount which
the Company expects 1o he entitled nnd has present enforceable richts under the comtract Revenue is allocated

proportionally across the contract performance obligations and recognised either over ime or at a paint m tme as
apprapriate.

Revenue included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income represents amounts im oiced during the
vear. exclusive of Value Added Tax. Reyenue attributable to licence fees. lacility services. business support sen ces

and compound management seniices provided are recogrised on a monthly basis and are accrued or deferred as
DECESSAN .

Trade receivaiies

Trade receivables are recognised initiath at fair value and subsequenthy measured at amortised cost. fess provision for
impairment. A pronision for impairment of trade receiy ables is recogmised on trade recens ables it there ts considered to
be expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition of the financial asset Losses ansing from impairment are recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in other operaling expenses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOIUNTING POLICIES - continued

Exceptional items

Exceptional items. which are presented on the face of the Consolidated Staientent of Comprehensiy e Income. are those
matenal items of operational incoine and evpenditure which. because of their nature and expected infrequency of the
events giving rise 10 them. merit separate presentation to allow users of the accounts te better understand the elements
of financial performance in the vear, so as to facilitate comparison with prior pertods and the assessment of trends in
financial performance.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a share option scheme for certain emplovees of the Group. In accordance with IFRS 2. for all
grants of share options and awards. the cost of equitv-settled transactions 15 measured by reference to their fair value
at the date at which thev are granted. The Black-Scholes model is used to determine the fair value of options granted.

The cost of equily-settled share transaclions is recogmsed. together with a corresponding increase in equity. otver the
period untal the award vests No expenss is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest. except for awards wherz
vesting is conditional upon 2 market condition. which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
condilton is satisfied. provided that all other performance conditions are satisflied. At each reporting date. the
cumulatiy e expense recegnised {or equity-based transactions reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the number ol’avw ards that. in the opinion of the Directors at that date. will uitimatelv vest,

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

fn the application of the Group’s accounting policies. which are described in note . the Directors are required to make
Judgements (other than those inyvolving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and hiabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Directors have identified twoe matters which involve eritical accounting judgement or kev sources of estimation
uncertainty. These relate 1o the use of estimates and judgements in determining the fair value if investments and the
assumptions used in determining the appropriateness of the going concern statement. The approach 1o both areas is
disclosed in the accounting policies noted above.

Adoption of new International Financial Reporting Standards

Application of new and revised Internationat Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs")

The following new and amended IFRSs are effective for the 2019 Financial Statements in addiuon to those disclosed
on page 29. The adoption of this Standard has not had any matenal impact on the disclosures or on the amounts
reperted in the Group's or the Parent Compam 's Financial Statements.

« IFRIC 22 Foreign currengy transactiens and advance consideration

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective and in some cases have not vet been adopted by the EL

* Anendments to IFRS Y Prepay ment Features with Negative Compensattionl -
* Amendments 10 IAS 28 Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

= Annual Improvements to [FRS Standards 2013-2017

+ Amendments to 1AS 19 Emplovee Benefits Plan Amendment. Curtatlment or Scnlcmcml
« IFRIC 23 Uncertaintts over income fax lreatmentsl

« IFRS 17 Insurance Coniracis~

—

Effective for annual periods commencing on or after | fanuary 201}y,
2 Effective for annual periods commiencing on or after 1 January 2021
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Notes to the Conselidated Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

2. REVENUE

Revenue
Revenue represents amounts invoiced to third parties. derived from the Group's principal actinity being the
incubation of early stage bioscience and medical technology companies.

Revanue by categon 2019 2018
£600 £000
Licence {ees 7,274 6173
Facility services 1244 1128
Busmess support services [.i32 8406
Compound management - 239
G670 R.346
Granl income 461 9314
Investnent income (see note 4) 30 - f”\ i
Total revenue as per IFRS 15 ALY 9.317

Inforntation about major custenters
Inctuded in revenues is approximatels £2.122.000 (2018 £1.793.000) which arose from sales to the Group’s largesl
customer. No other single cusiomers contributed 10%% or more to the Group s revenue n 20149 or 2018,

Segmental information

For management purposes the Group is currenth organised into one business segment. which s the meubation of earls
ctage hiescience and medical technology compantes. Since this is the only primary reporting segment. no further
information has been presented
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Nates to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 December2019

3.

4.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

The Group's foss before taxation is simted afier (crediting) charging

Grani income

Depreciation of owned property. plant and equipment
Deprecranon of right of use assets

Other operating leases - land and buildings

Auditor’s Femuneration

Fees pavable to the Company s auditor and their associates for the audrt of the
consolidated annual {inancial statements

Fees pay able to the Company 's auditor and their associales for the audit of the
subsidianes (inancial statements

Tatal audit fees

Taxation compliance services
Other services

Total non-audit fees

INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest receiy able

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Loss on disposal of property. plant and equipment

Chuange in the fair value of trading investments at the vear end
Profit on sale of business division

Profit on disposal of non-capitalised assets
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2019 2018
£°000 £°000
(461) Vi)
3600 621
882 751

- 27

31 46
2019 208
£'000 £'000
15 24

16 22

31 +6

7 &

7 hi
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
30 40
2019 2018
£'000 £°000
(6) (3
O8Y 181

- 13

30 o 10
712 1490
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemernts - continued
for the Year Fnded 31 December2019

6. FINANCE COSTS

2019 2018
£1000 £'000
interest and charges on bank overdralts and other loans (220) (Lid)
Fotetun exchange gains / losses - 21
Interest expense on lease ltabilities (1.028) (929)
Other finance costs - (6
(1.248) (1. 160)
7. STAFF COSTS
Staff costs during the vear mcluding Directors:
2019 20108
£'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 2436 2.475
Social security costs 239 247
Other pension cosis 13% 1306
2R3 2 MK
Other pension costs include the delined contrebution plan charge.
Average number of persens employed , )
Management and adininistration ~Y ol
Highest paid Director: 2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Emoluments 175 199
Penston contribution 16 17
191 216

3 Dhrectors (2018 2} received contributions to defined contribution personal pension plans. Directors” emoluments are
disclosed separately in note 22.

]
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Netes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued
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8. TAXATION 2019 2018
£'000 £'000

Current tax:
UK Corporalion tax - -

Deferred tax:

Current y ear (39) 376
Adjustment in respect of previous years 17 -
Effect of changes in tax rates 4 -
Toal deferred tax (%) 376
(1%} 376

Total tax (¢credity/charge for the vear

Factors affecting the tax credit for the year

The 1ax assessed for the vear is higher than (2018: higher thanj the standard rate of corporation Lax in the
UK. The difference 1s explained below:

2019 2018
£000 £000
Loss betoie taxation {469) (1.414)
Loss multiplied by the standard rate of
corporaion tax in the UK of 19% (201 4: 19%4) (89 (269)
Effects of:
Adjustments in respect of prion v gars v7 -
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes I8 519
[ncome not wanable for tax purposes (139} (345)
Disposal of subsidian - 376
Deferred tax not provided 117 us
Tax (income)/expense {18} 376

Al the balance sheet dme. a reduction in the rate of UK corporation tax tu 199 from | April 2017 and
10 17% from | April 2020 has been substantively enacied. After the balance sheet date. the Goyernment
announced in the 2020 Budgel that the rate would not be reduced 1o 17%
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9. PROPERTY.PLANTANDEQUIPMENT
(1) 2) (3) (83
GROUP Land Plant
and Leasebold Fixtures and and
Buildings lmprovements Fittings Machiaery Equipment Total
£7006 £7000 £'000 £1000 £000 £7000
COsT
Al T January 20138 22313 15,033 283 7700 553 43 902
Grants (974 {10937 (0 (263) (82) (12.316)
Net cos( 21.339 ERIVI 243 7437 471 33,586
Additions 173 15 7 8 41 244
Disposals - - {24) {6314 {143) {0.683)
At 3] December 2018 21512 4111 226 931 367 27147
Additions 1.616 76 5 31 5] £.779
Disposals - - ()] {30 (63 {104y
At 3] December 2019 23, }2& 4 187 222 Y32 . 353 __28.822
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2018 [0 1.O8%8 |4ty 5.642 314 7809
Charge for the vear To4 217 i7 303 7i i.372
Disposals - - {2 (5.085) 1143) (3.24%)
AL 31 December 2018 383 1305 143 A60 242 3 933
Charge for the vear 400 22 {4 26 82 1.242
Dispaosals - - £ (273 {63 (99}
At 31 December 2019 2.2%3 1.525 {50 w39 2549 5.076
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2019 20845 2.662 72 3 94 23746
At 31 December 2018 20.129 2 800 a3 71 123 23.214
) Includes righ of use of assets with a cost of £21.254 000 and accumudated depreciation of £2.209 000, with 2 Net Book
Value of £19.043.000
2 Under the terms of a grant for £1.2m recenved in 2015, the Group is required to retan the asset up (o Apnt 2021 w0 aveid

potential clawback of amounis received from the grant.

(3)

20 s ears to avoid potential clawback of amounts received from the grant,

-h Includes o
£9 OO0

cht of use assets with a cost of £27.004 and accumulate:
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Under the terms of vanous srants for £12m received between 2004 and 2008, the Group is required 10 tetain the assets for

depreciation of £18.000, with a Net Book Value of
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PROPERTY.PLANTAND EQUIPMENT - continued

Assels gifted to the Group previoushy were at market value at the date the ¢ift was made. Gifted plant and machinen was
valued by Conex Chromatography Systems Limited. a Company whose business and experience 1s in the maintenance
and sale of secondhand laboraton equipment. The gifted land was valued independently by Montagu Evans. a firm of
chartered survevors and properts consultants and the cost in the table above includes an merease i valuation of £230.000
frem the amouni mitally recogmsed 10 the accounts. The land onginadly had a carning value ol £1.000.000. As
depreciation on zilted assets is charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. an equal amount is
transierred from other reserves 1o the proiit and lossaccount.

) 4)
. i Land {2) {33 Plant
COMFPANY and Leasehold Fixtures and and
Buildings  Improvements Fittings Machinery Fquipment Total
To £'000 £'000 £'000 £7600 £'600 £'600
COST
At D January 2018 3465 17.030 172 177 2% 21.133
Additions i3 - 3 25 53
Disposals - - (21) (24) (108) (E33)
At 31 December 2018 o 3480 17.030 15% |39 200 21.033
Additions Tt - - 27 20 123
Disposals - - (0 {20 (3h (78)
At 31 December 2014 3.556 17.030Q ] E32 163 175 21.078
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
AL Januany 2018 L0035 427 120 95 219 RN
Charge for the y ear 183 384 “ 19 42 837
Disposals - - (im {20y (108) (147)
Al 3! December 2018 L1388 L.all 11 94 153 2565
Charge or the vear 185 384 kS 19 35 831
Disposals - - (H) {(21) {49} (76)
At 31 December 2019 1.373 1,595 121 92 139 3.320
NET BOOK VALUE
A 3] December 2019 2183 15,435 31 73 36 17.758
At 31 December 2018 2292 6019 3u G3 A3 IR_4r8

(23 Includes right of use of assets with a cost of £14,000 and accumulated depreciation of £8.000. with a Net Book Value of £6.600
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10.

INVESTMENTS

GROUP
Valuation

At anuan 2018
Additions

Disposal

Increase in fatr value
At 31 December 2018
Additions

Disposal

Increase in fair value

At 31 December 2019

Equity Convertible

Investment Loans Total
£'000 £'066 £'000
811 142 953
2221 335 2.576
- (501 (31

181 - 181
3.213 447 3664
1.276 130 1426
(14%) {130) (27%)
GRY - GRY
5029 467 3,496

The Group's equily in estimenis al the Balunce Sheel date in ihe share capiial of companies include the follovwmy,

Name of undertaking Country of Holding Proportien Nature of
incorporation held bnsiness
CompanDx Ltd England & Wales Ordinary 2% Pharmaceuticals
Alderley Anah tical 1.ad England & Wales Ordinan 19%, Pharmaceniicals
Neudinve Lid England & Wales Ordinary 2% Pharmaveuticals
Fast BioPharma Lyd England & Wales A Ordinary 8% Pharmaceuncals
BiVictriX Lid England & Wales Ordnary ot Pharmaceuticals
Xenogesis Ltd England & Wales Ordinars 5% Pharmaceuticals
1bisvision Lid Scotland Ordinary <% Pharmaceuticals
Roy lance Swabiluy Siorage Lid Scotland Ordinary 33%% Pharmaceuticals
Meitalinear Ltd England & Wales Ordinary 20 Pharmaceuticals
Intermedi Group Ltd England & Wales Ordinary 2% Pharmaceuticals
Neusensor Lid England & Wales Ordimar 2% Pharmaceuticats
Ebar Initiatives Lid Scotland Ordinary 1% Pharmacewicals
Novasound Lid Scotland Ordinary <)% Pharmaceuticals
Footfalls & Heartbeats {UK) Lid Envland & Wales Ordinan (%0 Phannaceuticals
Enterobiotix 1.1d Scotiand Ordinary < 1% Pharmaceuucals
BioAscent Discovers Lid Scotland Ordinarv 30% Pharmaceuticals
Bio-tmages Drug Delivery Lid Scotland Ordiary 2% Pharmaceuticals
Phystomedics Limmred Scotland Ordinary <% Pharmaceuticals
Incus Performance Lid England & Wales Ordinary t% Pharmaceuticals
NuViston Biotheraples Limited England & Wales Ordinary 4%, Pharmaceuticals
Cuantee Limied Scotiand Ordinary 3% Pharmaceuticals
Maxwellia Lunited England & Wales Ordinary 9% Pharmaceuticals
Kinomica Liied Fngland & Wales Ordinary 16%, Pharmaceuticals
Annum Limited England & Wales Ordinary 10% Pharmaceuticals
Rinn Therapeuues Lid Cngland & Wales Ordinary % Pharmaceuticals
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10.

INVESTMENTS — continued

On 20 June 2018 BioAscent Discovery Limied recerved an investment from a third party and as a result BioAscent
Discoven Limited 1s no fonyer a substdiary company. From 20 June 2018 its results were no longer consohidated in
the Group's financial staterments. The Group's remaining shareholding m BioAscent Discoverv Limited is held as an
iny estment on the Group's Balance Sheet and amounts 10 £ .6 mullion

The Group holds the following convertible loans:

A lean for £12.500 that bears interest at 7% per annum and is convertible into ordinary shares at any time as determined
by the Group. The loan becomes repavable 5 vears from the date of drawdown if not previously converted.

A loan for £30.000 that bears inierest at 5% per annum 15 comvertible on the completion of a fundraising round.
The loan becomes repavable in March 2021

A loan for £30.000 that bears interest ar 3% per annum 1s com ertible on the completion of a fundraising round.
The loan becomes repayable i June 2021

Aloan far £30.000 that bears interest a1 5% per annum is convertible on the completion of a (undrausing round.
The loan becomes repa able in June 2021

Adoan ol £35.000 which is converuble on the earlier of a tunding round or sale or listing. The loan becomes repay able
i Juls 2021,

A foan ol £100.000 which is com ertible on completion of a funding round into shares equiy alent to those subscribed
for in that funding round. The foan becomes repavable on November 20120 and bears suterest at rate of 4% per annum,

Aloan for £150.000 which is convertible on completion of a funding round 1o shares equin alent to those subscribed
{or in that funding round. The loan becomes repavable in December 2020 and bears interest at 3% per annum
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10. INVESTMENTS — continued

The company s investments at the Balance Sheet date in the share capital of companies include the followmg:

COMPANY
Shares in

Suhsidiary
Undertakings
£'000
COST
At ] January 2018 2 135
Additions 0620
AL 31 December 2019 2.755 _
NET BOOK VALUE
A1 31 December 219 3 733
At 31 December 2018 _ 2.13%

The Group consists of a Parent Company . BioCity Group Limited. incorporated in the UK and a number of
subsidiantes held directh and indirectly by the Parent Compam . Information about the composition of the
Group at the end of the reporting period is as follows

Name of undertaling Country of  Holding Proportion Nature of

incorporation held business
BioCity Scotland Limited (2) Scotland  Ordinary [00%  Life sciences incubator
MediCity Nottingham Limited (1) England & Wales  Ocdinary L% Lile sclences incubator
Aldertey Park Ventures Limited (1) England & Wales  Ordinan 0% Im esiments
BroCify inyvestiments Limited () England & Wales  Ordinary 1013 Investments
BioCity Limited (1) England & Wales  Ordinany 104, Dormant
MediCity Limited (J) England & Wales  Ordinary 100% Dormant

(1) The registered office for these companies is Penny foot Streel. Nottinghamy NG 1GF.
12y The registered office for this company 1s Bo' ness Road. Newhonse. Lanarkshire. Scotland ML SUH

MediCity Limited (registered number 11610098) and BioCity Limited (regisicred number 09268033) are
dormant companies and hay e been for the (ull {inancial vear ended 31 December 2019, Financial Statements for
MediCity Limited and BioCitv Linuted have not been prepared in accordance with section 3v-LA of the
Companies Act 2006 and have pol been fled in pccordance with section 448A of the Companies Act 2006,
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11, TRADE ANDOTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Current:
Trade receivables HOY 637 292 319
Loss allowance for trade receivables (263) {136} - (1
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - £ 330 735
Other receiy ables 34 DGR - 841
Prepay ments 539 300 430 318
Accrued income 583 433 471 339

15064 2.322 2.535 2.55]

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured. interest free and repayable on demand.

The ageing of wrade receivables at the vear-end is shown i the table below.

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Naot due 200 £76 171 148
0-30 davs 193 243 RY 159
31-00 days (L2 26 3 i
41-9(r days 13 18 3 1
S+ day < 190 174 ~ 2
66U 637 292 3ty
Provision for impairments ol trade receivables (263} (136} - (1)
Totat S 500 2492 318
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11. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - continned

Mo ements in the provision for impatrments of trade receivables are showan tn the table below.

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

£'000 £'060 £'000 £'000
Balance at t fanuary 2019 136 70 1 L
Impairment {osses recognized 171 196 - 1
Amounis written off during the \ ear as
uncollecnbie (33 (H)2) - -
Amounis recovered during the vear () [qU)) i) (o
Impairment losses reversed - (12) - -
Balanice at 31 December 2044 203 136 - i

The Directors consider that the carn ing value of trade and other recen ables is approximately equal 1o thetr fur vatue

12, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£1000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cagh at bank and in hand 4499 3.323 2,439 03
3. TRADEANDOTHER PAYABLES
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2013
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Current
Trade pavables 1033 721 873 o%
Other taxation and social securits 169 185 168 149
Amounts ovwed to Group undertakings . - 4 -
Ovther pay ables s34 355 245 269
Accruals 626 764 258 349
2.364 2.225 1.548 [ E_

The Directors copsider that the carving value of trade and other pavables 1s approximately equoal to their fair value
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14

DEFERRED REVENUE

Group Company
2019 2018 20619 2018
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Current
Arising from advance pay ments from customers 169 143 39 42
BORROWINGS
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Current
Bank loans 49 52 - -
Other loans 613 435 380 245
Lease habilities 277 124 g6 -
039 [ 460} 243
Non current
Bank loans - gD - -
Other loans 4.193 2.537 3.843 1,940
Lease labidities 20,038 19783 17.328 17.381
25131 22371 21873 10321

The Group has one principal hank loan of £49.000. The loan was taken out in October 2005, Repayments commenced
in November 2015 and will continue umtil November 2020, The loan is secured by a floating charge over part of the
2490

Groups™ land. which has a carrving value of £430.000. The loan carries inferest at 3% above base rate and the loan
approximates to {air value.

Other loans include unsecured toans of £389.000 (2018: £373.000} due to Nottingham Trent Universiy. One loan for
£330, 000 accrues interest al 3% above the base rate and is repavable in quarterly instalments from June 202¢. The
remaining loan for £200.004 aecrues nterest at %5 and 1s wholly repavable in December 2020,

Other loans include an unsecured loan of £372.000 {2018: 33R.000) due to The University of Nottimgham The loan
acerues interest at 3% above the base rate and is repay able in quarterly instalments from Mav 2020,

Other loans mclude an unsecured loan of £76.000 (201%:; £152.004) due {0 Boots Property Lirnited. The loan is interesl
free and repavable i 202

A further unsecured loan of £3505 000 (2018: £635.000) 1s included within non-current other loans in the rable above.
This loan was provided by a Locat Enterprise Partnership in 2015 and is repan able on a quarterhy basis oser a five-vear
pertod. commencing two vears after the commencement of the loan.

Other foans also include an unsecured lean of £1.462.000 (2013: £1.454.000). This loan was provided by Notiingham
City Council in 2017 and is repayable on a quarterly basis over 30 vears and carries a fixed rate of interest of 4.8%
Other loans also include comverlible loans with Business Grovwth Fund and Blue Skies Investiments Limited which
were tahen out duting the » ear and aie dus for1edemption in Januan 2023, The total loan balance outstanding at the
end of the vear was £2 (33 000,
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16. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The maturity analy sis of contractual undiscounted cash flows for lease habibiies is as follows.

2019 2018
£'000 £°000
Within one vear 1,263 1.013
Between on and five years 6. 798 4.753
In more than five yvears 20.349 30,764
37410 3G.532
17. DEFFERED TAX
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Provided
Balance at 1 Januan 43 (331} 15 43
Adjustment in respect of prior penods 17 - 17 -
Deferred tax charge for the pertod {3%) 376 (35} -
Balance at 31 December _ 27 4 ] 27 45
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£'006 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assels 93 26 g4 63
Temporary differences trading - ) - (3)
Losses {GOY)Y (430} 7 tn
Deferred tax not provided 602 454 - -
Balance at 31 December 27 43 27 - ¥I~'.7

A deferred tax asset of £602.1(%10 has not been recoanised at 31 Decenmber 2019 (2018: £150.004), as it {5 uncertaim whether
capital allowances and losses brought forward will be utilised in the foreseeable future.
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i8 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Allotted issued and fully paid

Number Class Nominal value
2019 2018
£1000 £000
2241570 Ordinan shares £0 14 224 224
300 0HY Growth Shares 00001 - -
224 224

SHARE PREMIUM

Group Company
£000 £°000
Balance at 31 December 2018 and 31 Deceinber 2019 2.75% 2758

The ellect of using merger accounting principles on share capital and share premium is that the share capial and share
premium that exsted as at the point BioCiny Group Limited acquired the trade. assets and liabilities of BioCity Nottingham
Limited 1s accounted for as if it had been in existence as at the opening Balance Sheet date (1 January 2015).

The Ordinary shaves carry (he usual voting nghts, entitfement to an equal distribution of capital upon winding up the business
and entitlement to dividends. The growth shares do not carnv such rights,

OTHER RESERVES

The other reserves include land and plant and equipment that were gifted to the Group in 2012, These were incorporated mto
the Balance Sheet at the market values at the date the gift was made. This reserve will be realised on disposal of the gilted
assets (o o third party outside of the Group. or as the assets are depreciated. or impaired in the books of the Group.

MERGER RESERVE

The merger reserve relates to the premium on equils consideration used in the acquisition of the trade. assets and liabilities
of BioCtty Nottingham Limited, bv BioCitv Group Limited it 20135 plus cumulative retained eamings attributable to equity
holders of the Group as at the combtnation date. See note | for further details.

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT RESERVE
The profit and loss account reserve represents cumulative profits or losses. net of dividends paid and other adjustments.
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instroments

For the purposes of risk management. the following classes of ftnancial assets and their carmy ing values {at amortised
cost) have been identified:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£'000 £006 £000 £1000
Cash and cash equivalents 3,499 3325 2.439 [S1eN)
Loans and receivables 1,370 2325 Gl 1454
3869 3.650 3.079 2,119

Or the Group's financial assets ideniified above. £3.064.000 (2018 £5.215.000) {all due within one vear.
All of the Compam's [inancial assets idennfied aboy e fall due within one vear.

Cash and cash equrvalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banh and in hand and other highh liqund investments
that are readiby convertible tu a kiown amount of cash and are subject to an insigmiticant risk of changes in vajue

For the purposes of risk management. the {ollowing classes of financial lialn(ities and their carrving values (at amortised
cost) hay e been identified:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 018
£'000 £'000 £0060 £'00G
Trade and other pavables 2,195 2040 1.373 1.206
Borrowings 206,070 22,982 21633 JUSdH
2R.265 23.022 23.008 20.800

Of the Group's financial liabilities idemtilied above. £3.13-1.000 (31 December 2018 £2.651.000) {all due within one
vear. Of the Compam s financial liabiliies 1dentified above. £1.835.000 (3} December 2018 £1.511.000) fall due
within oue vear.

Fair value of {inancial assets and liabilities
The Dareciors consider there o be no madenad difference beiw een the carn g value and the fwir volue of the Group's
ar Compam s financial assets and liabilities at the Balance Sheet Date,

Capital risk management

The Gronp manages its capital to ensure that all entinies n the Group wilt be able to contimme as a going concern whilst
maxunising the relum 1o stakeholders. The capilal structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents and
reserves compriging profit and loss account and a revaluation reserve as disctosed i the Statement of Changes in
Equity.

Externally imposed capital requirement

The Group has one bank loan and seven other loans ouistanding at the Balance Sheet date. details ol which are included
in aote i3 The Directors consider that ali requirements and coyenants have been complied with during the period
convered by the financial statements and 1o the date the financial statements were authorised for issue
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19,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Significant accounting policies

Details of the sigruficant accounting policies and methods adopted. meludimg the crnitena for recogmuion. the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised. in respect of each class of {inancial asset.
financial Gabilits and equity instrument are disclosed in note | to these financial statements

Financial risk management

The Group's and Company’s objective in using financial imstruments is to maximise the retums on {unds held on
deposit and to mimmise exchange rate rish where appropriate. Bilance Sheets at 31 Deceinber 2019 and 31 Decemnben
2018 are not necessaniy representative of the positions throughout the vear. as cash and cash equivalents fluctuate
considerabhy throughout the vear depending on the timing of working capital receipts and pavments,

It is, and has been throughout the year. the Group’s policy that no speculative trading m mancial instruments 1s
undertaken.

The Group is fuinded principally through im estments and grant funding and it invests its funds in highh liquid
mvestments that are readily convertible (o a knownt amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value. The Group’s policy throughout the period has been to minimise risk by placing funds in low-nisk cash
deposits. whilst ensuring the Group receiv es a reasonable return on the Tunds placed on deposit.

Foreign currency risk management
The Group’s {unctional and reporting currency is sterling,

Liquidity risk management

The Group manages hquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and borrowing faciliies. by continuoush
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. and by matching the matunity profiles of {inancial assets and liabilities. OF
the Group's financial assets. £3.664.000 fals due witlin one vear and £205 000 falls due after more than one vear. Of
the Group's financial habilities. £3.134.000 falls due within one year and £25 131,000 falls due after more than one
yvear

Credit risk management

Credit risk represents the nsh that counterparties will defauht on contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. The Group activelv monitors its ewdstanding trade receny able balances and has estabhshed credit control
procedures.

The Group’s nish on ltquid Tunds 1s hmited because the Group's funds are held with highly rated bankmnyg mstituiions.

The carving value of financial assets recorded in the financial statements. which are net of impairment losses.
represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk as no collateral or other credit enhancements are held.

Market risk management
The Group's exposure (o market rish primarils comprises interest rate exposure. Group funds are invested in cash
deposiis with the objective of mamntaining a balance between accessibility of funds and competitive rates of return.

Interest rate risk management
The Group has one bank loan and a further two loans cuistanding at the Balance Sheet date w here interest is fined at
3% above the base rate.

Tt 15 estimated that a movement of 0.3% in interest rates during the s oar, which represents management’s assossiment
of a reasonably possible change. with all other vanables remaining censtant. would have an inunaterial impact on the
Group’s loss after tax,
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Cash and cash equivalents eamed £30,000 of investment income dunng the vear (3018: £30.000) and if the interes

rate had been 0.3% higher or lower during the vear. ¢t would have mcreased or decreased wmvesiment income by
approxumatele £20.000.

Maturing profile of financial iiabiiities

GROUP
Weighted
average
effective Lessthan Mere than
interest i year 1-Syears S years Total
rate (%) £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
31 December 2018
Non-interesi-bearing payv ables 25341 70 - 2.377
Varabie rafe borrowings 3.75% 35 623 - G678
Fixed rate borrowings J.43% 4350 923 2216 3589
Lease tiabilives 4 K tots 4.733 30.704 36532
3.821 6.375 32.980 3176
31 December 2019
Non-utterest-heartng pay ables 2439 - - 2439
Vanable rate botrowings 3.73% {92 426 - G1R
Fined rate borrowings 440, 302 738 2.09% 3.33%
Leuse dralalitics 4 8% 1.263 6.798 2934y 37.410
4.396 7.962 41 447 47 %05

All Group borrowings are 1 pounds sterling
= =
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMFENTS - continued

Maturing profile of financial Habilities

COMPANY
Weichted
average
effective
interest Lessthan 1-5 More than
rate (%) 1 year Years 8 years Toeal
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
31 December 2018
Non-interest-bearing payables F415 - - 1413
Vanable rate borrowings 3.75% 54 623 - 677
Fixed rate borrowings 4.43% 324 377 2216 297
Lease liabilities 4.8% 776 3819 28436 33.031
2569 1819 30,652 38.04¢
31 December 2019
Non-nterest-bearing payvables 1548 - - 1348
Vanable rate borronings 3.75% 192 426 - 018
Fixed rate borronings 4.82%, 334 377 2.098 2 804
Lease liabilities 4.8% 803 4952 26,402 32.247
2967 5755 28.500 37.222

All Group borrowings are in pounds sterling.
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9, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value measurements

The information set out below provides information abont how the Group deternunes fair yalues of vanous financial
assets and Nnancial Liabilities.

Level | {air v alue measurements are those denved from quoted prices (unadjusted) 1 active markets tor identical
assets or Liabilites:

Level 2 fair value measurements are those dermved from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
(hat ure obsery able {01 the asset or liabality | either direcuds (Le. as prices) artadirectly (Le, derved from prices). and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation technigues that include inputs for the asset or
liabilizy that are not based on observable market data (unobsen able inputs)

The Group does not have am instruments valued atlevel 1 or 2. There are no financial assets or Liabilities subsequentdy
measwred a1 fair yalue on a Level 3 far v alue measuremnem basis. The Directors consider that the camn g v alue of the
financial assets and liabitities recognised approsinates 1o their fair values.

20 PENSIONS

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for the benefit of the employees. The assets of the scheme
are administered by trustees and are independent from those of the Group.

The pension costs charge for the vear was £137.630 (2018 £136.027). The pension accrual being contributions due to
the pension plan at 31 December 2019 was £Nil (2018; £18.336).

2. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
2019 2018

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
share options  average price share eptions  average price
&) (£}
Outstanding at begmmng of the vear 51341 121 496951 1.21
Granted during the vear - 121 19.190 1.21
Forfeited during the vear (2383 1) 124 (2727 1.21

Cutstandiny at end of the vear 489,363 S13.414

Exercisable at end of the year - -

The Group operates a share option scheme Tor emplovees of the Group. Options are exercisable at a fixed price per
share and vest over four v ears in equal instalments. 1f the options remaun unexercised after a period of ten vears {rom

the date of grant. the options exptre. Options are forfened if the employ ee leaves the Group belfore the options are
exercised,

The Directors have considered the fair + alue of the share options and are of the opinicon that overall there is no material

difference therefore. there is no share-based pavments charge included in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensin e Income.
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22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

GROUP

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries. which are related parties. have been eliminated
on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Transactions with related parties that are not a member of the Greup
are disclosed below

Xenogesis Limited
Dr G Crocher. a Director of BioCitn Group Limited was also a Director dwring the vear of Xenogesis Limifed.
Kenogests Limited was a customer of the Group during the vear

During the  ear sales totalling £177.393 (2018 £14-£.296) were made to Xenogesis Limited on a normal commercial
basis At 31 December 201¢ the Group had o vear-end recervable balance of £3.055 (2018 £4.316)

The Group. has a £192.608 equity invesiment in Xenogests Limited. Details of this investiment are provided in nole
1143

Locate Bio Limited
Professor K ShakeshelT. a Director of BioCity Group Limited was also a Director of Locate Bio Limited during the
vear. Locale Bio Limited was a customer of the Group during the vear.

Dunng the vear sales (otalting £102.335 (2018 £47.473) were made to Locate Bio Limiled on a nermal commercial
basis. At 31 December 2019 the Group had a vear-end reasonable balance of £1.044 (2018: £2.253).

Bio-Lmages Drug Delivery Limited
Dr G Crocker. a Director of BioCity Group Limited was also a Director of Bio-Images Drug Delivery Limited during
the vear Bio-Images Drug Delisen Limited was a customer of the Group during the vear.

The Group has a £194.045 equity investment in Bio Images Drug Discovenn Limited. Details of this investment can
be found in note 10,

During the s ear the Group made sales 1odaliing £267 299 (2018, £122.789) w0 Bio-lmuages Drug Delivers Limited on
normal commercial basis. At 31 December 2019 the Group had a vear-end receivable balance ol £2.162 (2018:
£2.233 balance pa able)

The United Kingdom Science Park Association
Dr G Crocker. a Director of BioCity Group Linuted was also a Director of The United Kingdem Science Park
Association during the vear. The United Kingdom Science Park Association was a supphier of the Group dunng the vear.

During the vear the Group made purchases totalling £1.395 to The United Kingdom Science Park Association on a
normal commercial basis. At 31 December 2019 the Group had a v ear-end pavable balance of £Nil.
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22.

RELATEDPARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

Royiance Stability Storage Limited
T Read. a Director of BioCity Group Limited was also a Director during the vear of Rovlance Stability Storage
Limited. Roviance Siability Storage Limited swvas a customer of the Group during the vear.

Durng the vear the Group made sales totatling £93.202 (20H8: £91.676) 10 Roy lance Stabilits Storage Limited on a
normal commercial basis. At 31 December 2019 the Group had ay car-end reecivable balance of £217.270 (2018
£117 344

BioCity Group Limited is the guarantor 1o a Joan of £ 130.000 taken out by Roylance Stability Storage Limited.

The Group has a £16.400 equitv investiment in Roy fance Stability Storage Limited. Details of the invesiment are
provided m note 16 to these financial statements.

BioAscent Discovery Limited
Dr G Crocker. a Director of BioCity Group Limited was also a Director of BioAscen! Discovers Limiled dunay the
vear, BioAscent Discosvery Limited was a customer of the Group during the vear

During the vear the Group made sales totalling £357. 149 (20%: £460.107) 10 BioAscent Discoverv Limited on anermal
commercial basis. At 31 December 2019 the Group has a» ear-end receivable balance of £1408 (208 £832 421

The Group has a £ 1.600.000 equity inyestment in BioAscent Discoven Limited. Details of the investment are provided
in note 1010 these finanaial statements.

The University of Nottingham
The Universin of Nottingham 1s a shareholder of BioCiy Group Limited.

During the year the Group made purchases [rom The University of Nottingham ol £7.000 (2018: £1.805) At 3}
December 2019 the Group had a v ear-end pavable balance of £Ni] (2038 €N

During the s ear the Group made sales 10 The University of Nottingham of £365 (2018 £NiD) AL 31 December 2019
the Group had a vear end recervable balance of £N1k (26118: £Nil)

At the y ear end the Group had an advanced Joan of £372.000 (2018 £3538.000). The loan accrues interest ai 3% above
bage rate and 1s repay able in quarterly instadliments from May 2020,

Nottingham Treot University

Nottingham Tren! Universin 1s a shareholder of BioChy Group Limubed. Buring the vear the Group made saies
otatling £2.310 (2018 £881) to Nottingham Trent Unisersity on a pormal commercral basis. At 31 December 2019
the Grroup had @y gar-eiid receiy able bulunce of £N1 2018 £5449)

At the vear end. the Group had an advanced Joan of £230.000 (2018 £220.000) from Neftingham Trent Umversin
The taan accrues utterest at 3% per annum. The loan ts repayvable i 2020

At the vear end the Group had a further advanced loan ol £139.000 (2018 £152.937). The loan accrues ntetest at 3%
above base rate and is repay able in quarterly installments trom June 2020

The Group leases the Penny foot Street property From Nottingham Trent University under a lease expiring n
November 2632, The rental payable under the lease i3 £30.000 ger annum
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22, RELATEDPARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuncration of the Directors. who are the kov management personnel of the Group. is set out below.

2019 2018

£'000 £'000

Short-term empios ee benefits 512 3
Post-emplovment benelils 39 30
551 472

3 Directers (2018: 2} are members of o money purchase penston scheme.

COMPANY
Details of the Company related parts transactions with parties outside of the Group are noted above. In addition the
following details of irading within the Group are disclosed i accordance with JAS 24,

Recharge Recharge Amounts Amounts
from to owed by owed to
subsidiary subsidiary subsidiary subsidiary
companies companies companies companies
£'000 £'0040 £'000 £000
Related party Subsidiaries.
2018 - RS ) 735 -
2014 - 553 1.336 -

Amounts oulstanding are unsecured. No provisions hay e been made tor doubttul debts owed by related parties.

23. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Since the Balance Sheet date. there has been a global outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19). On 12 March. the World
Health Organisatien declared the cutbreak of coronavirus (COVID-1Y) a pandemic. Mamy countrics. including the UK.
have reacted to contain and delay the spread of the virus. which included extensive social distancing. business closures
and trinel bans The directors considered the financial impact of this pandemic and have concluded that the matier is a
non-adjusting PBSE. Please refler 1o the Direciors” Report on page 2 for further information.



